
1 

AGENDA
FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCo) 

January 10, 2024 – 1:30 P.M. 
Hall of Records, Room 301, 2281 Tulare Street, Fresno, California 

COMMISSION MEMBERS  ALTERNATE MEMBERS LAFCO STAFF 
Gary Yep, Chair  Michael Lopez Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer  
Buddy Mendes, Chair Pro Tem Scott Robertson Amanda Olivas, Clerk to the Commission 
Nathan Magsig Vacant  Jessica Gibson, LAFCo Analyst 
Daniel Parra Juan Lara, LAFCo Analyst 
Mario Santoyo Jessica Johnson, LAFCo Counsel 

LAFCo Office:  1401 Fulton Street, Suite 900, Fresno, CA - 93721 - (559) 600-0604 
Staff reports prepared for each item listed in this agenda may be viewed at www.fresnolafco.org. 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Pledge of Allegiance

3. Comments from the Public: Any person wishing to address the Commission on a
subject not listed on the agenda may do so at this time. (State your name and address
and please keep your comments to three (3) minutes.)

4. Potential Conflict of Interest: Any Commission member who has a potential conflict of
interest shall now identify the item and recuse themselves from discussing and voting on
the matter pursuant to Govt. Code sec 84308.

CONSENT AGENDA 

All consent agenda items are considered routine in nature and will be enacted by one motion; 
there will be no individual discussion of these items unless requested by a member of the 
Commission or the public. Any item pulled from the consent agenda for discussion will be set 
aside until after approval of the consent agenda. Prior to taking any action the public will be given 
the opportunity to comment on any consent item. The consent agenda will be considered on or 
about 1:30 p.m. 

5. Recommendation: Approve 5A-5B by taking the following actions:

A. Consider Approval: Minutes from the LAFCo meeting of December 13, 2023.

B. Consider Approval:  Contract with Sampson, Sampson & Patterson, LLP to Perform
LAFCo’s Biennial Financial Audit for FY 2021-2022.



 

2 
 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS   
 
6.  Consider Approval: A request by the City of Fresno to waive the application fees for the 

proposed Ashlan-Hayes Nos. 2, 3, & 4 change of organization application. 
 
7.  Workshop: Mid-Year Budget and Work Program Status for Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 
 
8.  Executive Officer Comments 
 
9. Commission Comments/ Reports 
 
10.  Adjournment 
 
THE NEXT LAFCO MEETING will be held on February 14, 2024, at 1:30 p.m. in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Chamber – Hall of Records, Room 301, Fresno, California.   
 
PLEASE NOTE:  
 
(1) If you are an applicant for, or a participant in, any proceeding on the agenda for a land use entitlement and have made 
campaign contributions totaling more than $250.00 to any member or alternative member of the Commission within twelve 
(12) months prior to the Commission considering your application, please immediately inform the Commission of your 
contribution. State law disqualifies each Commissioner and alternative Commissioner from participating in and voting on land 
use entitlement decisions (which include changes of organization and reorganizations) if the Commissioner or alternative 
Commissioner has received campaign contributions from (i) an applicant for a land use entitlement, (ii) someone who lobbies 
the Commission or LAFCo staff regarding an application for land use entitlement, (iii) someone who testifies in person before 
the Commission regarding an application for land use entitlement, or (iv) someone who otherwise acts to influence the outcome 
of an application for land use entitlement. State law also prohibits applicants and participants from making campaign 
contributions totaling more than $250.00 to a Commissioner or alternate Commissioner during the time of the proceeding is 
pending before the Commission and for twelve (12) months after the Commission’s final action.  If you have any questions 
regarding these requirements (which are contained in the California Political Reform Act Government Code Section 84308 et 
seq.), please feel free to contact LAFCo staff at (559) 600-0604. 
 
(2) In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate at this meeting, 
please contact Ms. Amanda Olivas, Clerk to the Commission at 559-600-0604. Notification provided a minimum of 48 hours 
prior to the meeting will enable the Clerk to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. Pursuant to 
the ADA, the meeting room is accessible to the physically disabled.   



Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 
1401 Fulton Street, Suite 900, Fresno, CA 93721, (559) 600-0604 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NO. 5A 

FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCo) 

MEETING MINUTES 
December 13, 2023 

Members Present:      Commissioners Magsig, Mendes, Parra, Santoyo, Yep 

Members Absent:     None 

Staff Present:    Brian Spaunhurst, LAFCo Executive Officer 
Amanda Olivas, Clerk to the Commission 
Jessica Gibson, LAFCo Analyst 
Juan Lara, LAFCo Analyst 
Jessica S. Johnson, LAFCo Counsel  

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

Chair Yep called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m.

2. Pledge of Allegiance

Chair Yep led the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. Comments from the Public

There were no comments from the public.

4. Potential Conflicts of Interest

There were no conflicts of interest.

CONSENT AGENDA 

5. A. Minutes from the LAFCo Meeting of November 8, 2023.
B. City of Sanger “Somerset Reorganization.”

Motion: Approve Item 5A-5B 
Moved: Commissioner Mendes 
Second: Commissioner Magsig 
Ayes: Commissioners Mendes, Magsig, Parra, Santoyo, Yep 
Noes: 0 
Absent: 0  
Passed: 5-0 



Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer; Amanda Olivas, Clerk to the Commission; Jessica Gibson, Analyst; 
Juan Lara, Analyst 

www.fresnolafco.org 

REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS 

6. Executive Officer Comments.

LAFCo Executive Officer Brian Spaunhurst provided comments.

7. Commission Comments/Reports.

No Commission Comments.

8. Adjournment

Moved: Commissioner Parra
Second: Commissioner Mendes
The meeting adjourned at 1:36 p.m.

Amanda Olivas 
Clerk to the Commission 



FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCO) 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

BY: 

CONSENT AGENDA ITEM NO. 5B 

January 10, 2024 

Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 

Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer 

Amanda Olivas, Clerk to the Commission  

SUBJECT: Consider Approval: Contract with Sampson, Sampson & Patterson, LLP to 
Perform LAFCo’s Biennial Financial Audit for FY 2021-2022.  

RECOMMENDATION: Authorize the Executive Officer to execute a Contract with 
Sampson, Sampson & Patterson, LLP to Perform LAFCo’s 
Biennial Finanicial Audit for FY 2021-2022.  

Background 

As an independent agency, Fresno LAFCo is not subject to statutory audit requirements as are 
many other local governmental agencies since LAFCo does not receive funding from the state 
and/or federal government. However, LAFCo is still accountable to ensure that funds are spent 
appropriately and are accounted for. 

The Commission’s Financial and Accounting Procedures stipulate that a financial audit be 
conducted every two years, when there is a change in Executive Officer, or upon the 
Commission's direction. The last audit was performed by Sampson, Sampson & Patterson, 
LLP, for fiscal year (“FY”) 2019/2020, and was accepted by the Commission in August 2022. 

Discussion 

In November 2023, staff issued a Request for Proposal for the FY 2021/2022 to 23 Certified 
Public Accounting firms and received two proposals back from Sampson, Sampson and 
Patterson, LLP (“SS&P”) and Douglas M. Smith and Company (a copy of the proposals are 
attached).   

LAFCo and the CPA firms estimate the work will be completed and submitted to the 
Commission by May of 2024.  

Staff supports awarding the contract to SS&P due to the high quality of work it performed on 
the Commission’s last multiple financial audits and its familiarity with LAFCo. 

G:\LAFCO WORKING FILES\000 HEARINGS\2024\01- January\Staff Report - Audit Consultant Selection.doc 















































FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCO) 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

DATE: January 10, 2024 

TO: Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Request by the City of Fresno to waive the application fees for the 
proposed change of organization application related to Ashlan-Hayes Nos 
2, 3, and 4. 

RECOMMENDATION OPTIONS: 
1. Deny the request and direct the City of Fresno to submit the proper fee amount

(requires a simple majority); or
2. Approve the request to waive application fees for the amount of $14,400 (requires no

less than four-fifths vote).
3. Approve the reduction of application fees by an amount determined by the Commission

(requires no less than four-fifths vote).

Executive Summary 

The City of Fresno will be proposing a 141-acre reorganization of territory that includes 
annexation of this territory to their city limits. The proposal will be submitted by the City of 
Fresno pursuant to a condition of the tax sharing agreement from the Dakota-Hayes No. 4 
Reorganization approved in 2021 and revised in 2022.  

The City of Fresno has formally requested a waiver of the LAFCo reorganization processing 
fees per the requirements of LAFCo policy (Attachment “A”). The reorganization fee requested 
to be waived for 81-160 acres is $14,400. LAFCo policy also requires a four-fifths vote for 
approval. 

City Staff has been invited to present and answer any questions the Commission may have. 

Background 

Statute and Policy Authorize the Commission to Reduce or Waive Fees 

Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”), Government 
Code sec. 56383(d): 



2 

The commission may reduce or waive a fee, service charge, or deposit if it finds that 
payment would be detrimental to the public interest. The reduction or waiver of any fee, 
service charge, or deposit is limited to the costs incurred by the commission in the 
proceedings of an application. 

Existing LAFCo Policy on fee reduction or waiver from Fresno LAFCo Policy Manual 350.07 
(Exceptions to Required Fees):  

The Commission may waive any processing fee by a four-fifths affirmative vote if the 
imposition of such fee would be detrimental to the public interest, as determined by the 
Commission.  Any change specifically recommended by the Commission in a study 
approved by Commission may not require a fee. 

Budgetary Implications 

The Commission’s 2023-24 budget projects $20,000 in fee revenue; the requested fee waiver 
is approximately 72% of projected revenue.  

Staff notes that in accord with LAFCo statute, the City of Fresno pays approximately one-third 
of the Commission’s annual operating budget. 

G:\LAFCO WORKING FILES\000 HEARINGS\2024\01- January\Staff report - Request for fee waiver City of Fresno Ashlan Hayes.doc 



PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE: December 21, 2023 

TO: BRIAN SPAUNHURST, Executive Officer 

FRESNO LAFCO COMMISSIONERS 

FROM: ROB HOLT, Supervising Planner 

Planning & Development Department 

SUBJECT: REQUEST FOR LAFCO APPLICATION FEE WAIVER FOR ASHLAN-

HAYES NOS. 2, 3, AND 4 REORGANIZATION 

The City of Fresno is requesting an application fee waiver for the Ashlan-Hayes Nos. 2, 

3, and 4 Reorganization.  This annexation was required as part of a tax sharing agreement 

from a previous annexation (Dakota-Hayes No. 4 Reorganization).  The purpose for this 

annexation was to complete a squared-off boundary from the “bypassed territories” of the 

Dakota-Hayes No. 4 Reorganization. 

Per 56001 of Division 3. Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act, 

logical boundaries are necessary to promote orderly development.  The aforementioned 

annexation, Dakota-Hayes No. 4 Reorganization, created a peninsula of County lands 

surrounded upon three sides by City boundaries.  The City and the County acknowledged 

that this would create a fiscal disadvantage to the County to maintain services in the area.  

The memorandum of understanding (tax sharing agreement) between the City and the 

County agreed to work toward specific measurable goals including the transfer of right of 

way and the initiation of annexation to improve access to services. 

Due to the purpose of the annexation, the fees should be waived as it is in the public 

interest to process the application.    

cc: Juan Lara, Analyst III 

Fresno LAFCO 



1 

FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

DATE: January 10, 2024 

TO: Fresno Local Agency Formation Commission 

FROM: Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer 

SUBJECT: Workshop on a Mid-Year Budget Review and Work Program Status for 
Fiscal Year 2023-2024. 

RECOMMENDATION:  Receive and file, provide direction as needed. 

Executive Summary 

This report presents mid-year status of the Commission’s annual budget and the progress 
made on projects in the approved annual work program.  Budget analysis has been prepared 
with budget data from November 2023, extrapolated through calendar 2023. 

At mid-year, revenue and expenses generally are on track with the adopted budget. 
• Estimated revenue $693,000 or 104% of $665,158 approved;
• Estimated office expenditures $60,000 or 49% of $122,064 approved;
• Estimated personnel expenditures $235,000 or 50% of $467,384 approved; and
• Estimated consultant services expenditures $12,000 or 16% of $75,710 approved.

Work program projects are generally lagging behind application-generated work and are 
discussed in greater detail in this report. 

Discussion 

The Cortese-Knox-Hertzberg Local Government Reorganization Act of 2000 (“CKH”) requires 
the Commission to adopt a draft budget each year by May 1st and a final budget by June 15th. 
The Commission adopted its annual budget and work program at its hearing on June 14, 2023. 

The Clerk to the Commission updates LAFCo’s financial data and provides bookkeeping 
services. The Commission also has a part time bookkeeper that aids on an as needed basis.    

Commission business is guided by LAFCo’s Financial and Accounting Procedures and by 
CKH.  Pursuant to these procedures, “The Executive Officer shall serve as the budget 
administrator, to prepare, present, transmit, review, execute, and maintain the LAFCo budget 
consistent with State Law and Commission policy. The Executive Officer shall provide the 
Commission with a mid-year budget report comparing expenditures to the adopted budget. 



2 

Overview of Mid-Year Budget 

As shown in Attachment “A,” the Commission has an approved budget of $665,158 which 
includes $645,158 from contributions by the County ($322,579) and the 15 cities ($322,579 
apportioned by their annual budgets), and $20,000 in projected fee revenue.  

The Commission has an approved reserve of $150,000 and a legal reserve of $50,000. 

Mid-year revenue is estimated to be $693,000, composed of the County and all 15 cities’ 
allocations and about $48,000 in application fee revenue.  

Mid-year expenses are estimated to be $307,000, or approximately 46% of approved 
expenses.     

Overview of Mid-Year FY 2023-2024 Work Program 

Work Program item descriptions are presented as adopted in italics and are followed by a 
status report. 

1. Conduct Biennial Financial Audit of FY 2021-22

The Request for Proposals window closed with two proposals submitted. After careful 
consideration of both submittals, Sampson, Sampson & Patterson were notified of their 
selection. Staff is coordinating with the selected firm to process the next steps and anticipates 
a contract ready for the Commission’s review and approval no later than the February 
Commission Hearing. 

2. Process Applications:  reorganizations, sphere of influence amendments, etc.

Application processing is a core service in that staff evaluates applications for 
consistency with CKH and adopted policies to promote orderly growth.  The 
Commission, in its determination of local agency boundaries, will be balancing that 
development with sometimes competing state interests of discouraging urban sprawl, 
preserving open-space and prime agricultural lands, and efficiently extending 
government services. 

In the event of a conflict of staff resources between application and programmatic 
activities application processing will take priority. 

Status at mid-year 

• Reorganization applications submitted: 5
• Reorganization applications recorded/complete: 4
• Reorganization applications still in progress: 1



3 

• Extension of service applications: 5
• Extension of time applications: 0
• Projects terminated: 1

After adjusting the annual application fees from the previous budget, application driven 
projects are exceeding the amount of fees anticipated thus far. Staff has conducted proactive 
outreach with several cities and districts and continues to aid as needed to encourage strategic 
planning early on. Several projects are anticipated to be submitted by the end of the FY that 
would get us extend us further beyond our original fee projections. 

3. Continue Fresno LAFCo’s Municipal Service Review Program

The MSR program is a core service in that it is the foundation for the update of a sphere 
of influence.  A MSR is the analysis of the service or services to be provided by a local 
agency and consists of written conclusions, or “determinations” based on evidence 
collected by LAFCo. MSRs conclude with recommendations based on this body of 
evidence that encourage order, logic, and efficient service delivery by local agencies. 

The priority MSRs for this FY are: 

• City of Clovis
• City of Reedley
• City of Kingsburg

Status at mid-year 

Aside from the City of Clovis MSR which is nearly finished, two additional cities have indicated 
a potential need for MSRs which will highly depend on development projects that would require 
annexation as well as SOI amendments. Due to limited Staff resources, only one City would 
likely be able to have their MSR initiated by the end of this FY. The City that does not provide a 
complete application in time would likely have to wait until the next FY or have their MSR 
conducted by a third party with a large emphasis placed on LAFCO oversight. Unfortunately 
work on programmatic MSRs will likely be placed on pause until the end of the next FY.  

4. Review and Update of Fresno LAFCO Policy Manual

Due to several updates on State laws and requirements, an update to the Policy Manual and 
Employee Handbook are needed. Draft updates are nearly completed and will be sent for 
review by our legal counsel. Workshops related to these updates are anticipated to coincide 
with the upcoming FY Budget items. 

G:\LAFCO WORKING FILES\000 HEARINGS\2024\01- January\2024 Staff Report - Mid Year Financial .doc 



REVENUE SUMMARY
Approved
FY 23-24 
Budget

Estimated 
To Date

% 
Estimated 

To Date
ALLOCATION COUNTY 322,579 322,579 100%
ALLOCATION CITIES 322,579 322,579 100%
APPLICATION FEES 20,000 48,000 240%
AUTH. FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 0 0 0%

Total 665,158 693,158 104%

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY
OFFICE OPERATIONS 122,064 60,000 49%
PERSONNEL 467,384 235,000 50%
CONSULTING SERVICES 75,710 12,000 16%

Total 665,158 307,000 46%

Attachment A


	January 2024 Agenda
	AGENDA
	FRESNO LOCAL AGENCY FORMATION COMMISSION (LAFCo)
	January 10, 2024 – 1:30 P.M.
	Hall of Records, Room 301, 2281 Tulare Street, Fresno, California
	COMMISSION MEMBERS  ALTERNATE MEMBERS  LAFCO STAFF
	Gary Yep, Chair   Michael Lopez  Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer
	Buddy Mendes, Chair Pro Tem   Scott Robertson  Amanda Olivas, Clerk to the Commission
	Nathan Magsig  Vacant   Jessica Gibson, LAFCo Analyst
	Daniel Parra    Juan Lara, LAFCo Analyst
	Mario Santoyo    Jessica Johnson, LAFCo Counsel
	LAFCo Office:  1401 Fulton Street, Suite 900, Fresno, CA - 93721 - (559) 600-0604

	Staff reports prepared for each item listed in this agenda may be viewed at www.fresnolafco.org.

	December 13, 2023 Action Minutes
	Staff Report - Audit Consultant Selection
	Background
	Discussion

	Sampson Sampson and Patterson Proposal
	Douglas Smith Proposal
	Staff report - Request for fee waiver City of Fresno Ashlan Hayes
	Executive Summary

	Attachment A- Ashlan-Hayes Nos. 2 3  4 Reorganization Fee Waiver Memo
	2024 Staff Report - Mid Year Financial 
	FROM: Brian Spaunhurst, Executive Officer

	Attachment A FY 2023-24 Mid-Year Report



